
 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 18, 2016 - 6:30 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 
A g e n d a 

 
 1. Meeting called to order by Mayor Kupsik. 
 
 2. Roll Call. 
 
 3. Approve Minutes of June 20, 2016 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 

  
 4.  C omments f rom the publ ic as a llowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to i tems on t his agenda, except for publ ic 

hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 
 5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. - None 
 
 6.  Downtown Design Review.  

A. Application by Paul Pappas for Gold Coast, 1102 Kathy Ct., Fontana, WI 53125 for a new exterior 
awning with signage on the storefront at 108 Broad Street, Tax Key No. ZOP 00347B. 
B. Application by Beth Tumas for The Bottle Shop, 617 W Main Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for two 
new exterior replacement signs at 617 W Main Street, Tax Key No. ZOP 00291. 
 

7. Continued Public Hearing a nd r ecommendation on a  General Development P lan ( GDP) Application f iled by Peter 
Jurgens for Oakfire Restaurant, 831 Wrigley Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for building Modifications to include a 
rear addition, and a new second floor with indoor and outdoor seating in the Central Business (CB) zoning district at 
831 Wrigley Drive, Tax Key No. ZOP 00340. 
 

8. Public Hearing and recommendation on a  Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) Application filed by Peter Jurgens for 
Oakfire Restaurant, 831 Wrigley Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for building Modifications to include a rear addition, 
and a new second floor with indoor and outdoor seating in the Central Business (CB) zoning district at 831 Wrigley 
Drive, Tax Key No. ZOP 00340. 

 
9. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a  Conditional Use Application filed by Lyle Fitterer, 1040 San Jose Drive, 

Elm Grove, IL 53122, to install an accessory structure (Pier) closer to the lake shore than the primary structure, within 
Lakeshore O verlay Z oning District located at 63 Hillside Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, Tax Key No. Z YUP 
00094I. 

  
10. Public Hearing and recommendation on Zoning Text Amendments for Section 98-407 Substandard Lot Regulations, 

Section 9 8-706 Exterior Storage S tandards f or R esidential, O ffice, and Commercial D istricts, S ection 98 -034 
Definitions, & Section 98-206(4)(k) Commercial Indoor Lodging. 

 
11. Discussion on Z oning T ext A mendments f or that may af fect several se ctions of t he Z oning C ode de aling w ith 

Cosmetic Tattooing Options. 
 
12. Adjournment 

 
 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 
Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate accommodations. 

 Posted 7/15/16 



Page 1 of 5 
Plan Commission Mtg Minutes 6-20-16 

 

 
 
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, JUNE 20, 2016 - 6:30 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 

 
MINUTES 

 
 1. Meeting called to order by Mayor Kupsik at 6:56 pm. 
 
 2. Roll Call 
 Present:  Doug Skates, John, Gibbs, Ann Esarco, Tom Hartz, Tyler Frederick, Sarah Hill 
 Not Present:   
 Also Present:  Planner Mike Slavney, Atty. Dan Draper, Mayor Kupsik, Administrator Oborn, 
    Inspector Robers and Assistant Gregoles 
 
 3. Approve Minutes of May 16, 2016 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 
  
 
 Gibbs/Fredrick moved to approve the minutes of May 16, 2016 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 

MOTION #1 

 The motion carried unanimously. 
  

 4.  Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. - None 

 
 5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. - None 
 
 6.  Downtown Design Review. – None 
 
7. Review and Recommendation on an Application for Land Division Review filled by Pathfinder Surveying LLC, for 

Thomas and Diane Murphy, 1806 Clover Road, Northbrook, IL 60062 to split and existing lot into three parcels at 
1325 Park Row with the two new lots fronting High Street, current Tax Key No. ZCL 00080. 
 

 Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commissioners. 
DISCUSSION – Tom Murphy, 1806 Clover Road, Northbrook, IL 

 
 

Hill/Skates moved to approve the recommendation on an application for Land Division Review filled by Pathfinder 
Surveying LLC, for Thomas and Diane Murphy, 1806 Clover Road, Northbrook, IL 60062 to split and existing lot into 
three parcels at 1325 Park Row with the two new lots fronting High Street, current Tax Key No. ZCL 00080, including 
staff comments.  The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #2 

 
8. Review and Recommendation on an Application for Site Plan Review for a parking lot alteration filled by Richard 

Jachimek, 1109 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for the property at 314 Sage Street, Tax Key No. ZOP 
00147. 
 

 Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commissioners. 
DISCUSSION – Richard Jachimek, 1109 Geneva St., LG 

 
 MOTION #3 



Page 2 of 5 
Plan Commission Mtg Minutes 6-20-16 

 

Hartz/Gibbs moved to approve the recommendation on an application for Site Plan Review for a parking lot 
alteration filled by Richard Jachimek, 1109 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for the property at 314 Sage 
Street, Tax Key No. ZOP 00147, including staff recommendations regarding parallel parking spots and signage.  
 The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
9. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Prairie State Enterprises of Darien, 

LLC dba Lake Geneva Mobil, 350 N Edwards Blvd., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the installation of an electronic 
message center on a freestanding monument sign located at 350 N Edwards Blvd., Tax Key No. ZA261500001. 
 

Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission.  
DISCUSSION –Ken Kerns, Owner and applicant  

 

 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1 – None 

Hill/Skates moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #4 

 
 

Hartz/Hill moved to approve the recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Prairie State Enterprises 
of Darien, LLC dba Lake Geneva Mobil, 350 N Edwards Blvd., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the installation of an 
electronic message center on a freestanding monument sign located at 350 N Edwards Blvd., Tax Key No. 
ZA261500001 including staff recommendations and fact finding .  The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #5 

 
10. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Patricia and Samantha Strenger, 

245 Country Club Drive, Unit 2A, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility at an 
existing Commercial Apartment in a General Business (GB) zoning district located at 721 Geneva Street, Tax Key 
No. ZOP 00159.   
 

Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission.  
DISCUSSION –Smantha Strenger, applicant 

 

 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1 – None 

Skates/Gibbs moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #6 

 
 

Hill/Skates moved to approve the recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Patricia and Samantha 
Strenger, 245 Country Club Drive, Unit 2A, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility 
at an existing Commercial Apartment in a General Business (GB) zoning district located at 721 Geneva Street, Tax 
Key No. ZOP 00159, ensuring that all vehicles and recreational vehicles are parked on a hard surface, no outdoor 
storage, all staff recommendations and fact finding.  The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #7 

 
11. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Anthony Scalzitti, 608 Fairview Ave, 

Elmhurst, IL 60123 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility at an existing Single Family Home in a General 
Business (GB) zoning district located at 233 S Lake Shore Drive, Tax Key No. ZNB 00003.   
 

Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission.  
DISCUSSION –Anthony Scalzitti, applicant 

There was a discussion about the difference between B&B’s and Commercial Indoor Lodging facilities.  
 



Page 3 of 5 
Plan Commission Mtg Minutes 6-20-16 

 

O’Neil asked what are the time limits for commercial indoor lodging? 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1 – Terry O’Neil , 954 George St., LG 

Slavney replied that our ordinance does not identify any explicitly, however, if you reside in the same dwelling unit 
for more than half a year it is considered a permanent residence. 

 

Gibbs/Skates moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #8 

 
 
 

Skates/Gibbs moved to approve the recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Anthony Scalzitti, 
608 Fairview Ave, Elmhurst, IL 60123 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility at an existing Single Family 
Home in a General Business (GB) zoning district located at 233 S Lake Shore Drive, Tax Key No. ZNB00003, to include 
the taking down of the garage, ensuring that all vehicles and recreational vehicles are parked on a hard surface, no 
outdoor storage, all staff recommendations and fact finding.   The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #9 

 
12. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Anthony Scalzitti, 608 Fairview Ave, 

Elmhurst, IL 60123 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility at an existing Single Family Home in a General 
Business (GB) zoning district located at 237 S Lake Shore Drive, Tax Key No. ZNB 00004.   
 

Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission.  
DISCUSSION –Anthony Scalzitti, applicant 

 

 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1 – None 

Gibbs/Hartz moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #10 

 
 

Hill/Skates moved to approve the recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Anthony Scalzitti, 608 
Fairview Ave, Elmhurst, IL 60123 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility at an existing Single Family Home 
in a General Business (GB) zoning district located at 237 S Lake Shore Drive, Tax Key No. ZNB 00004; ensuring that all 
vehicles and recreational vehicles are parked on a hard surface, no outdoor storage, all staff recommendations and 
fact finding.  The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #11 

 
13. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Anthony Scalzitti, 608 Fairview Ave, 

Elmhurst, IL 60123 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility at an existing Single Family Home in a General 
Business (GB) zoning district located at 419 Cass Street, Tax Key No. ZNB 00002.   
 

Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission.  
DISCUSSION –Anthony Scalzitti, Applicant 

 

 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1 – None 

Hill/Skates moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #12 

 
 

Skates/Gibbs moved to approve the recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Anthony Scalzitti, 
608 Fairview Ave, Elmhurst, IL 60123 to operate a Commercial Indoor Lodging facility at an existing Single Family 
Home in a General Business (GB) zoning district located at 419 Cass Street, Tax Key No. ZNB 00002; ensuring that all 

MOTION #13 



Page 4 of 5 
Plan Commission Mtg Minutes 6-20-16 

 

vehicles and recreational vehicles are parked on a hard surface, no outdoor storage, all staff recommendations and 
fact finding.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
14. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Planned Development Application, General Development Plan (GDP) & 

Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by Shad Branen, 448 Milwaukee Avenue, Burlington, WI 53105 for a 
Commercial Indoor Entertainment Facility (Movie Theater) including exterior modifications at 244 Broad Street, 
Tax Key Nos. ZOP 00246, 00247, & 00248. 
 

Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission.  
DISCUSSION –Peter Jergens & Shad Branen, Applicants 

The area type/use and sign lighting exceptions make sense to Planner Slavney.  Marquee lighting and video screen 
posters are another exception that makes sense.   
 
 

Schaffer stated his full support of this recommendation. 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1 – Darren Schaffer, Chamber of Commerce 

 

Hill/Fredricks moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #14 

 
 

Hartz/Gibbs moved to approve the recommendation on a Planned Development Application, General Development 
Plan (GDP) & Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by Shad Branen, 448 Milwaukee Avenue, Burlington, WI 53105 
for a Commercial Indoor Entertainment Facility (Movie Theater) including exterior modifications at 244 Broad Street, 
Tax Key Nos. ZOP 00246, 00247, & 00248 noting the exceptions that are being allowed because of the historic 
nature of the building – exterior single bulb lighting, projection sign, 6 monitors, marquee and 4 sconce lights 
mounted to the second floor, all staff recommendations and fact findings.  The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #15 

 
15. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Peter Jurgens for Oakfire 

Restaurant, 831 Wrigley Drive, to operate an Outdoor Commercial Entertainment (Restaurant) in a Central 
Business (CB) Zoning District located at 831 Wrigley Drive, Tax Key No. ZOP 00340. 
 

Applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission.  
DISCUSSION –Peter Jurgens, applicant 

 

 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1 – None 

Gibbs/Hartz moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #16 

 
 

Hill/Gibbs moved to approve the recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Peter Jurgens for 
Oakfire Restaurant, 831 Wrigley Drive, to operate an Outdoor Commercial Entertainment (Restaurant) in a Central 
Business (CB) Zoning District located at 831 Wrigley Drive, Tax Key No. ZOP 00340 including all staff 
recommendations and fact finding.  The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #17 

 
16. Public Hearing and recommendation on a General Development Plan (GDP) Application filed by Peter Jurgens for 

Oakfire Restaurant, 831 Wrigley Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for building Modifications to include a rear 
addition, and a new second floor with indoor and outdoor seating in the Central Business (CB) zoning district at 
831 Wrigley Drive, Tax Key No. ZOP 00340. 
 
DISCUSSION –Peter Jurgens, Applicant & David Scotney, Owner 



Page 5 of 5 
Plan Commission Mtg Minutes 6-20-16 

 

Applicants gave an overview of the application details and there was an extensive discussion with the Commission.  
 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1

 
 – None 

Skates/Hill moved to continue the public hearing and the recommendation to the July Planning meeting. 
MOTION #18 

The motion carried unanimously. 
 
17. Discussion on Zoning Text Amendments for Section 98-407 Substandard Lot Regulations, Section 98-706 Exterior 

Storage Standards for Residential, Office, and Commercial Districts, Section 98-034 Definitions, & Section 98-
206(4)(k) Commercial Indoor Lodging. 
 

Inspector Robers / Planner Slavney gave an overview of the zoning text amendment details and there was a 
discussion with the Commission.   

DISCUSSION 

 
 
 
 
18. Adjournment 

 

Gibbs/Hills moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:28 pm.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #20 

 
 
/s/Jackie Gregoles, B&Z Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 



  

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

 
Meeting Date:  July 18, 2016  
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Paul Pappas for Gold Coast                            New exterior awning with signage at existing business at  
1102 Kathy Ct.                               108 Broad Street, Tax Key No. ZOP 00347B.   
Fontana, WI 53125   
             

               

Description:

 

   The applicant would like to replace an existing dilapidated awning with a new canvas awning with 
store signage. 

Staff Recommendation:

 

    Staff has no objection to the proposed awning as it replaces an existing awning that has 
fallen into disrepair and presents a danger to people using the sidewalk below. Staff has contacted the awning 
manufacturer about reinstalling the lights on the new awning and was told that it was not designed for the additional 
weight, therefore staff recommends that the lights be prohibited from being installed on the new awning supports. 

 
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Beth Tumas for The Bottle Shop                New exterior signage at an existing business at  
617 W Main Street     617 W Main Street, Tax Key No. ZOP 00291. 

 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147   

Description:
 

  The applicant would like to replace two existing exterior signs with new signs with different wording. 

Staff Recommendation:

 

  Staff has no objection to the replacement signs as they are the same colors and similar size 
to the existing signs. 

 
 

 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Oakfire Restaurant      General Development Plan (GDP) for a rear and second 
831 Wrigley Drive               floor addition/remodel at 831 Wrigley Drive, Tay Key   
Lake Geneva, WI 53147                                                     
 

No. ZOP 00340. 

Description:
The applicant proposes to build a new kitchen on the rear of the building and a new second story at this which 
requires a Planned Development Process. 

   

 
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the General Development Plan (GDP) for this location with the provisions that the 
applicant receives approval from the Plan Commission for the Precise Implementation Plan. 

   

 

Agenda Item #6A 

Agenda Item #6B 

Agenda Item #7 



  
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed Planned Development (GDP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed Planned Development is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed Planned Development in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 

does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or 
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of 
this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development. 

 
4. The proposed Planned Development maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed Planned Development is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed Planned Development outweigh all potential adverse 

impacts of the proposed Planned Development after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact finding 

would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed Planned Development (GDP) is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed Planned Development is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed Planned Development in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 

does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or 
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of 
this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development. 

 
4. The proposed Planned Development does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 



  
5. The proposed Planned Development is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 

impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed Planned Development do not outweigh all potential 

adverse impacts of the proposed Planned Development after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
 

 
Applicant:    
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Oakfire Restaurant      Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) for a rear and second 
831 Wrigley Drive               floor addition/remodel at 831 Wrigley Drive, Tay Key   
Lake Geneva, WI 53147                                                     
 

No. ZOP 00340. 

Description:
The applicant proposes to build a new kitchen on the rear of the building and a new second story at this which 
requires a Planned Development Process. 

   

 
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) for this location with the provisions that the 
applicant comes back to the Plan Commission with a more detailed plan that addresses any of the Plan Commissions 
concerns. 

   

 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed Planned Development (PIP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed Planned Development is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed Planned Development in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 

does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or 
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of 
this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development. 

 
4. The proposed Planned Development maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed Planned Development is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 

Agenda Item #8 



  
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed Planned Development outweigh all potential adverse 

impacts of the proposed Planned Development after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact finding 

would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed Planned Development (PIP) is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed Planned Development is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed Planned Development in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 

does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or 
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of 
this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development. 

 
4. The proposed Planned Development does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed Planned Development is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed Planned Development do not outweigh all potential 

adverse impacts of the proposed Planned Development after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
 
 
 
 

Applicant:      Request: 
Lyle Fitterer                              Conditional Use approval to install an accessory structure  
1040 San Jose Drive                             (Pier) closer to the lake than the primary structure in the   
Elm Grove, IL 53122                             Lakeshore Overlay Zoning District at 63 Hillside Drive,  
       
 

Tax Key No. ZYUP 00094I. 

Description:
 

   The applicant would like to remove and reconstruct a pier for lake access. 

Staff Recommendation:

 

    Staff has no objection to the proposed pier which has received approval from the 
Wisconsin DNR. 

As part of the consideration of a requested Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission needs to make findings 
per the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and then make a recommendation to the city Council. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

 

Agenda Item #9 



  
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate fact finding 

would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and 
standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, 
or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does not 

result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or 
other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may 
in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this Chapter, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide 
development. 

 
4. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land 

use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not impose an 
undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies serving 
the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse impacts of the 

proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements 
recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact finding 

would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and 
standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, 
or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does result 

in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or 
other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may 
in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this Chapter, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide 
development. 

 
4. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 

and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 



  
5. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not impose an 

undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies serving 
the subject property. 
 

6. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential adverse impacts 
of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
 
Staff may provide additional comment on the above items and will comment on remaining agenda items at the 
meeting.          Kenneth Robers  
                                          Zoning Administrator   







































































































































(1) Upon and after the effective date of this Chapter, no lot shall be created which does not meet 
the Minimum Zoning District Area requirements of Section 98-304 or the Minimum Lot Area 
requirements of Section 98-305 or which does not meet the lot dimension requirements of 
Sections 98-402 or 98-403. 

Section 98-407 Substandard Lot Regulations 

(2) A lot of record existing upon the effective date of this Chapter in a Residential District (see 
Section 98-102), which does not meet the Minimum Zoning District Area of Section 98-304 or 
the Minimum Lot Area (MLA) requirements of Section 98-305, or which does not meet the lot 
dimension requirements of Sections 98-402 or 98-403 may be utilized for a detached single-
family dwelling unit, provided the measurements of such area and dimensions are equal to or 
greater than 70% of the requirements of this Chapter. Said lot shall not be more intensively 
developed (with multi-family or nonresidential uses) unless combined with one or more 
abutting lots (or portions thereof) so as to create a lot which meets the requirements of this 
Chapter. 

(3) Existing legal lots of record that are now substandard in any way, and that are zoned ER-1 and 
contain less than one acre in size, shall be considered as legal substandard lots. For new 
dwellings or building additions on such lots, a Conditional Use Permit may be sought to enable 
the granting of permission to use the lot width, lot frontage, lot area and setback requirements 
of the SR-4 District. (Section 98-905 for Conditional Use procedures). For this particular type 
of Conditional Use Permit request, a fee of $100.00 shall be imposed. (Ord. No. 98-1 2/9/98) 

(1) Purpose: The purpose of this Section is to control the use of residential, office and 
commercial property for exterior storage so as to promote the safety and general welfare of 
the public. For exterior storage in agricultural and industrial districts, refer to Section 98-206. 

Section 98-706 Exterior Storage Standards for Residential, Office and Commercial Districts 

(2) Requirements for Exterior Storage in Residential Zoning Districts: No person shall park 
or store recreational vehicles on a lot in a residential district except within a fully enclosed 
structure or except as provided herein. 

(a) For the purposes of this Ordinance, a recreational vehicle or equipment shall include 
boats, boats with trailers, motor homes, motor coaches, pickup campers, camping trailers, 
travel trailers, fifth-wheel trailers, large utility trailers, race cars and their trailers, canoes or 
kayaks and their trailers, tent campers, folding campers, utility trailers, carnival equipment 
and their trailers, and cases or boxes used to transport recreational vehicles or their 
equipment, and similar equipment and vehicles. 

(b) Outside parking of recreational vehicles and equipment are subject to the following 
provisions: 

1. No more than two (2) recreational vehicles may be parked or stored outside a fully 
enclosed structure in the rear yard. 

2. No A recreational vehicle may be parked or stored in a front or side yard on a regular 
basis.  an existing driveway, from Memorial Day until Labor Day, as long as it is on a 
concrete, asphalt, or paving brick surface. Vehicles may not be used as living quarters 
in this situation. If rear of lot is not accessible through driveway, a recreational vehicle 
may be parked long term on the side yard as long as no portion extends past the plane 
of the house which abuts a public Right of Way other than an alley way. 



3. A recreational vehicle shall be located not closer than three (3) feet to a side or rear lot 
line. 

4. The recreational vehicle shall be maintained and be in good condition and safe for 
effective performance for the function in which it was intended. The exterior of the 
vehicle shall be intact. 

5. Recreational vehicles shall be roadworthy. Vehicles that require a license shall be 
properly licensed. 

6. No recreational vehicles or equipment shall be parked or stored in any open space 
outside a building unless such equipment is wholly owned by the property owner who 
shall be in residence at the property in question. If the property is rented, such storage 
shall be permitted to the tenant only provided that such equipment is owned by the 
tenant. 

7. All equipment shall be parked or stored as inconspicuously as possible on the 
property. The area around the equipment or vehicle must be kept weed free and free 
of accumulation of other storage material. 

8. Under no circumstances shall a recreational vehicle be parked uncoupled from the tow 
vehicle in a public Right of Way, including an Alley way. 

Single-family detached dwelling unit: A dwelling designed for and occupied by not more than 
one family and having no roof, wall, or floor in common with any other dwelling unit. This dwelling 
unit type consists of a fully detached single-family residence which is located on an individual lot 
or within a group development. The dwelling unit must be a site built structure built in compliance 
with the State of Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code (UDC), or may be a manufactured dwelling 
(modular home) as permitted by the UDC or a manufactured home as permitted by the HUD 
code. For any of these dwelling units, the use of a permanent, continuous UDC foundation is 
required. This dwelling unit type may not be split into two or more residences. Refer to the 
illustration (right) and to Article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters: 

Section 98-034: Definitions 

A single 
family dwelling may not be used as a commercial indoor lodging facility. 

Section 98-206 Commercial Land Uses 
 (k) Commercial Indoor Lodging 

(k) Commercial Indoor Lodging 

Description: Commercial indoor lodging facilities include land uses which provide overnight 
housing in individual rooms or suites of rooms, each room or suites of rooms, each room or suite 
having a private bathroom. Such land uses may provide in-room or in-suite kitchens, and may 
also provide indoor recreational facilities for the exclusive use of their customers. Restaurant, 
arcades, fitness centers, and other on-site facilities available to non-lodgers are not considered 
accessory uses and therefore require review as a separate land use. 

Description: Commercial indoor lodging facilities include land uses which provide sleeping 
accommodations for overnight and/or extended stay housing in individual rooms or suites of rooms, 
for consideration to transients.  Such land uses may provide in-room or in-suite kitchens, and may 
also provide indoor recreational facilities for the exclusive use of their customers.  This land use 
includes but is not limited to hotels and motels. 

 



Commercial indoor lodging facilities also include land uses which provide sleeping accommodations 
for transients for overnight and/or extended stay housing in distinct housing units, including single-
family, two-flat, twin home, duplex, townhouse, multiplex and apartment dwelling units, including 
but not limited to land uses commonly referred to as “cottages”, “vacation homes”, “tourist 
homes”, “resort homes”, “fractional ownership and time share units”. 

 
As opposed to residential land uses, such commercial indoor lodging land uses are intended and 
managed to accommodate transients and tourists, and are thus prohibited from all Residential 
zoning districts, and from the Neighborhood Office and Neighborhood Business zoning districts.  
Such land uses are typically occupied to provide access to recreational, cultural and business 
opportunities in the region, and generally do not serve as the permanent legal residence of the 
occupants. 

 
Dwelling units which are occupied by a single property owner and guests staying without 
consideration for less than a year, and remain unoccupied by any other party for the remainder of 
the year, such as many “second homes” are considered residential units, rather than commercial 
indoor lodging.  This land use does not include Bed and Breakfast Establishments as regulated in 
Sec. 98-206 (4)(l). 

 
Restaurant, arcades, fitness centers, and other on-site facilities available to non-lodgers are not 
considered accessory uses and therefore require review as a separate land use. 
 

1. Permitted by Right: Not applicable. 

2. Conditional Use Regulations {PO, PB, GB, CB}: 

a. If located on the same side of a building as abutting residentially zoned property, 
no customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 100 feet of a 
residentially zoned property. 

b. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all property 
borders abutting residentially zoned property (see Section 98-610). 

c. Within the PO District, each and every room must take primary access via an 
individual interior door, and may not be accessed via an external balcony, porch or 
deck, except for emergency purposes. 

d. All vehicles shall have and shall be parked on an improved surface including any 
type of recreational vehicle. 

e.  No outside storage of any recreational accessories such a pool floats, life jackets, 
etc. 

f. Shall comply with Section 98-905, standards and procedures applicable to all 
conditional uses. 

g.  After approval applicant must apply for City Business License. 

h.  After approval applicant must apply for and comply with the room tax permit. 

 

3. Parking Regulations: One space per bedroom, plus one space for each employee on 
the largest work shift. 

 


















	July 18, 2016 Agenda - June Mins - Staff Rpt
	July 18, 2016 Agenda
	UA g e n d a

	June 20, 2016 Minutes
	PLAN.July2016.asd

	Agenda Item #6 - Downtown Design
	Agenda Item #6a - Gold Coast
	Agenda Item #6b - Bottle Shop

	Agenda Item #7 - Oakfire - with Elevations
	Agenda Item #7 - Oakfire - a
	Agenda Item #7 - Oakfire - continued
	Agenda Item #7 - Oakfire - New - Elevations

	Agenda Item #8 - Oakfire - PIP
	Agenda Item #9 - Fitterer Pier
	Agenda Item # 10 Zoning Text Changes
	Agenda Item # 10 Zoning Text Changes
	Agenda Item # 10 re June  2016 Zoning Text Changes
	USection 98-407 Substandard Lot Regulations
	USection 98-706 Exterior Storage Standards for Residential, Office and Commercial Districts
	USection 98-034: Definitions
	USection 98-206 Commercial Land Uses


	Agenda Item # 11 - Tattoo Ordinance



